Ehrenfest time and chaos

Dima Shepelyansky (2020), Scholarpedia, 15(9):55031.

doi:10.4249/scholarpedia.55031

revision #194583 [link to/cite this article]

• Dima Shepelyansky, Laboratoire de Physique Théorique, CNRS, Université Paul Sabatier, Toulouse

The **Ehrenfest time** τ_E gives the scale of time on which the Bohr correspondence principle (Bohr, 1920) remains valid for a quantum evolution of an initial state at high characteristic quantum numbers q (or small effective Planck constant $\hbar \sim 1/q$) closely following the corresponding classical distribution. For a narrow initial wave packet the **Ehrenfest theorem** (Ehrenfest, 1927) guaranties that the average values of quantum operators are close to the corresponding classical averages. For systems with integrable classical dynamics the Ehrenfest time is rather long being generally inversely proportional to the Planck constant $\tau_E \propto q \sim 1/\hbar$ (or another power of it). The new nontrivial situation appears for classically chaotic dynamics when nearby trajectories diverge exponentially with time due to exponential instability of motion characterized by the positive Kolmogorov-Sinai entropy h > 0. Thus in such semiclassical systems the Ehrenfest time is logarithmically short $\tau_E \sim (\ln q)/h \sim |\ln \hbar|/h$. The properties of the Ehrenfest time of quantum dynamics of such chaotic systems, with related examples, are discussed below.

Contents

1 Bohr correspondence principle and chaos

- 2 System examples
 2.1 Chirikov standard map
 2.1.1 Integrable dynamics
 2.1.2 Chaotic dynamics
 2.2 Chirikov typical map
 3 Quantum correlators at Ehrenfest time
 4 Time reversibility
 5 Semiclassical expansion beyond Ehrenfest time
 6 Quantum evolution beyond Ehrenfest time
 7 Ehrenfest explosion and collapse
 8 Other aspects of Ehrenfest time
 9 Historical notes
 10 References
 11 External links at Wikipedia
- 12 See also at Scholarpedia

Bohr correspondence principle and chaos

The Bohr correspondence principle (Bohr, 1920) states that the quantum evolution reproduces the classical behavior

of corresponding classical system in the limit of small Planck constant \hbar , expressed in some dimensional units (e.g. an inverse quantum level number). Thus the important question is till what time scales holds such a correspondence. The Ehrenfest theorem (Ehrenfest, 1927) shows that this correspondence remains valid until the quantum wave packet remains narrow and compact in a system phase space. In a first approximation the spreading of a packet follows a spreading of classical trajectories in the phase space as it is described by the Liouville equation. For an integrable classical dynamics the separation of classical trajectories grows polynomially with time (e.g. linearly with time for a free motion with $\Delta x(t) \propto \Delta pt$). Thus, for an integrable dynamics, the Ehrenfest time τ_E is growing polynomially with a decrease of Planck constant, e.g. $\tau_E \propto 1/\sqrt{\hbar}$ for a free type propagation and an initial coherent wave packet width $\Delta x \sim \Delta p \sim \sqrt{\hbar}$.

The situation is quantitatively different for a case of chaotic dynamical systems. For them there is an exponential separation of classical trajectories with time characterized by the Kolmogorov-Sinai entropy h, given by a sum of positive Lyapunov exponents of motion (Lichtenberg and Lieberman, 1992). As a result the separation of trajectories of initial coherent wave packet grows as $\Delta x_t \sim \sqrt{\hbar} \exp(ht) \sim 1$ and the Ehrenfest time becomes logarithmically short for the case of chaotic dynamics with $\tau_E \sim |\ln \hbar|/h$ (due to the logarithmic dependence on Planck constant a numerical coefficient is not important in this estimate, even if we keep it for chaotic maps discussed below). Thus for chaotic systems the Ehrenfest theorem guaranties the validity of the correspondence principle only on rather short time scale. Hence, the important questions remain open: are there still certain variables which quantum averages remain close to their classical values beyond the Ehrenfest time $\tau_E \sim |\ln \hbar|/h$?, are there those which become very different from their classical values at this short time scale?, what does happen for initial broad wave packets for which the classical evolution is described by the Liouville equation?

The answers on these questions had been proposed by Chirikov et al., 1981, Chirikov et al., 1988 on the basis of a concept of two time scales. The first one is the logarithmically short time scale given by the Ehrenfest time $\tau_E \sim |\ln \hbar|/h$, after which the wave packet spreads on almost all phase space (or its significant part, e.g over phase). After this time the Ehrenfest theorem looses its validity. The second time scale is a much longer time determined by a discreteness of levels and inverse level spacing between effectively coupled states $\tau_H \propto 1/\hbar^2$ (now this time scale is usually called the Heisenberg time scale). It was also shown (Shepelyanskii, 1981b, Shepelyansky, 1983) that the quantum correlators become drastically different from their classical values (decreasing exponentially with time) after the short Ehrenfest time. However, their values are rather small, being proportional to a certain power of small Planck constant, and thus their influence on energy growth and diffusion appears only on much larger Heisenberg times $\tau_H \gg \tau_E$. The physical origin, due to which an exponential decay of classical correlations is replaced by constant fluctuations or slow polynomial decay in time for the quantum case, is related to the Heisenberg uncertainty principle with $\Delta x \Delta p \geq \hbar/2$. Indeed, for a classical chaotic dynamics a mixing in the phase space goes exponentially fast on smaller and smaller space scales $\Delta x \sim \exp(-ht)$ that would require exponentially large values of momentum $\Delta p \sim 1/\Delta x \sim \exp(ht)$ that is usually not possible due to system phase space restrictions. This argument is valid not only for a coherent initial state but also for a broad initial distribution which classical evolution is described by the Liouville equation (an example of a broad initial distribution is a line in a phase space with a fixed action and homogeneous distribution in phase). At the same time the semiclassical expansion of the wavefunction over the classical orbits (see Maslov, 1961, Maslov and Fedoriuk, 1981) remains valid much beyond the Ehrenfest time scale, up to the Heisenberg time scale τ_H , when an exponential number of orbits contribute to the expansion (Shepelyanskii, 1981a).

Below the above aspects of quantum properties of classically chaotic systems are presented and discussed on examples of symplectic dynamical maps.

System examples

We consider examples of different systems illustrating for them the Ehrenfest time dependence on parameters.

Chirikov standard map

The classical dynamics of this system, also known as kicked rotator, is described by a simple symplectic map $p_{t+1} = p_t + K \sin x_t, x_{t+1} = x_t + p_{t+1}$ for canonical conjugated momentum and coordinate variables (p, x) taken at time moments t, t + 1. The corresponding quantum evolution is described by the quantum map for the wave function $\psi_{t+1} = \exp(-i\hat{p}^2/2\hbar) \exp(-iK/\hbar(\cos \hat{x}))\psi_t$ with the commutator of momentum and coordinate operators being $[p_t, x_t] = -i\hbar$. Here the new variables p_{t+1}, x_{t+1} are determined after one map iteration composed by kick and rotation on a circle of period 2π (or free propagation in space for the case of cold atoms in kicked optical lattice). The time interval between kicks, mass are unity and K, \hbar are dimensionless. The detailed system description is given in (Chirikov, 1979,Lichtenberg and Lieberman, 1992) for classical dynamics and (Chirikov et al., 1981,Chirikov et al., 1988) for quantum evolution; see also Chirikov standard map at Scholarpedia. The quantum system was experimentally realized with cold atoms in kicked optical lattice by the Raizen group (Moore et al., 1995, see also Cold atom experiments in quantum chaos).

Integrable dynamics

For $K \ll 1$ the main part of the classical phase space is covered by the Kolmogorov-Arnold-Moser (KAM) curves and the dynamics is intergable (except exponentially narrow chaotic layers near separatrix of resonances). Then an initial coherent wavepacket with a width $\Delta p \approx \Delta x \sim \sqrt{\hbar}$ at a position with $p_0 \sim x_0 \sim 1$ spreads on a space width $\Delta x \sim 2\pi$ after the Ehrenfest time $\tau_E \sim 1/\sqrt{\hbar}$ since trajectories with momentum difference Δp diverge in space linearly with time (measured in number of map iterations). Thus in such an integrable case the Ehrenfest time is polynomially large at small values of Planck constant.

Chaotic dynamics

At $K \gg 1$ the phase space is mainly chaotic and the measure of stability island is very small (e.g. about 2 percent for at K = 5). In this regime the Kolmogorov-Sinai entropy is $h \approx \ln(K/2)$ (Chirikov, 1979) and the distance between two trajectories grows exponentially with time $\Delta x_t \approx \exp(ht)\Delta x_0$. It is natural to consider that the initial quantum wavepacket is spread completely when it has $\Delta x \sim \Delta p \sim 1$. Thus for the initial coherent wavepacket with $\Delta x_0 \approx \Delta p_0 \sim \sqrt{\hbar}$ the Ehrenfest time is

$$\tau_E \sim |\ln \hbar|/2h$$
,

as obtained by Chirikov et al., 1981. Thus for the case of chaotic dynamics this time scale is logarithmically short

being relatively small even for very small values of the Planck constant (or related very high quantum numbers). According to the Ehrenfest theorem during this Ehrenfest time the quantum wavepacket follows closely a chaotic classical trajectory, or a corresponding classical Liouville packet in the phase space with a probability distribution being close to the initial quantum one, and thus the quantum evolution is chaotic on this time scale $\tau_E \sim |\ln \hbar|/2h$. For typical parameter values used in (Chirikov et al., 1981) K = 5, $\hbar = 1/4$ (see Fig.5 in this Ref.) we have $h \approx 1$ and the Ehrenfest time is about one map iteration $\tau_E \sim 1$. However, the quantum diffusion in momentum follows the classical one on a significantly longer times $t_d \approx 40$ corresponding to an effective discreteness of the spectrum of motion. This time scale t_d (or t_H) is also often called the Heisenberg time to mark the fact that after this time the uncertainty relation between energy level spacing and time allows to resolve the discreteness of the spectrum. After this time the quantum interference effects lead to a suppression of quantum diffusion and its dynamical localization being similar to the Anderson localization in disordered solid state systems (see Chirikov et al., 1981,Fishman et al., 1982,Chirikov et al., 1988 and Anderson localization and quantum chaos maps). It is shown by Chirikov et al., 1981,Shepelyansky, 1986,Chirikov and Shepelyanskii, 1986,Chirikov et al., 1988 that the localization time scale t_H and the localization length ℓ are

$$t_H \sim \ell \sim K^2/\hbar^2 \gg \tau_E$$

Thus there is a question if there are quantum averages which are different from classical ones at a short Ehrenfest time scale. We discuss this point below.

Chirikov typical map

For the Chirikov standard map the Kolmogorov-Sinai entropy is rather large being of the order of one map iteration. Due to that the wavepacket spreading is very fast and very small values of Planck constant are required to obtain high values to the Ehrenfest time to be able to follow the spreading. Thus it is useful to consider another map proposed by Chirikov, 1969 for which the quantum evolution was analyzed by Frahm and Shepelyansky, 2009. In this case $h \ll 1$ and thus $\tau_E \gg 1$ at moderate \hbar values.

The typical map is obtained from the standard map by a finite-number T of random phase-shift angles at each map iteration. The map has the form

$$p_{t+1} = p_t + k \sin(x_t + \alpha_t), \ x_{t+1} = x + p_{t+1},$$

where independent random phase shifts α_t are uniformly distributed and are repeated periodically after T map iterations. The detailed study of classical and quantum map dynamics are reported in Frahm and Shepelyansky, 2009 (see also Refs. therein for properties of classical dynamics). The global chaos with unbounded diffusion appears for $k > k_c = \pi^2/(4T^{3/2})$ with $k_c << 1$ at T >> 1. Thus the typical map describes a quasi-continuous chaotic flow. The Lyapunov exponent and Kolmogorov-Sinai entropy are $\lambda = h \approx 0.29k^{2/3}$ (for two-dimensional maps there is only one positive Lyapunov exponent and hence $h = \lambda$). The diffusion rate in the regime of global chaos at $k > k_c$ is $D = \langle p^2 \rangle / t = k^2 / 2 \sim \lambda^3$. In the quantum case this diffusion is localized due to quantum interference effects (similar to the Anderson localization in disordered solid-state systems) with the localization length $\ell = k^2 T / (2\hbar^2)$. The Ehrenfest time scale in this system is $\tau_E \approx \ln(2\pi/\sqrt{\hbar})/h$. The exponentially fast spearing of initial wavepacket of coherent state is illustrated Fig.1. For the figure parameters, e.g. $\hbar = 2\pi/2^{16}$ this gives $\tau_E \approx 103$ that is in agreement with the numerical data showing that the spearing in phase reaches 2π approximately at 100 iterations.

Quantum correlators at Ehrenfest time

The properties of quantum correlators on Ehrenfest time and beyond are analyzed by Shepelyanskii, 1981b. The consideration is done for the quantum standard map of the Heisenberg operators

 $\hat{p}_{t+1} = \hat{p}_t + K \sin \hat{x}_t , \hat{x}_{t+1} = \hat{x}_t + \hat{p}_{t+1}$ with the standard commutator $[\hat{p}_t, \hat{x}_t] = -i\hbar \text{ at time moments } t.$

It is shown that the average of quantum correlator



Figure 1: Quantum evolution of the Chirikov typical map at k = 0.1, T = 10 in the semiclassical limit with $\hbar = 2\pi/N$ and with the Hilbert space dimension $N = 2^{12}$; 2^{16} (left; right column) and at

times t = 0, 20, 60, 100, 150 (first, second, third, fourth, fifth row). Shown are Husimi functions (smoothed Wigner functions) with maximum values at red, intermediate values at green and minimum values at blue at the lower half of one elementary cell $x \in [0, 2\pi]; p \in [0, \pi]$. The initial condition is a coherent Gaussian state centered at $x_0 = 0.8 \cdot 2\pi; p_0 = 0.25 \cdot 2\pi$ with a momentum variance being $\Delta p = 2\pi/\sqrt{12N}$. The resolution corresponds to \sqrt{N} (64 or 256) squares in one line. At the considered value k = 0.1 the global classical dynamic is diffusive but requires iteration times of $t \sim 10000$ to fill one elementary cell (Figure is taken from Frahm and Shepelyansky, 2009).

 $R(t) = \langle n|(\exp(-im\hat{x}_0) \exp(i\hat{x}_t) + \exp(i\hat{x}_t) \exp(-im\hat{x}_0))/2|n \rangle$, performed over an initial sate, decays with time not faster than $|R(t)| > 1/\sqrt{Kt/\hbar}$ (here an initial state has a momentum *n* being homogeneous in coordinate $0 \le x \le 2\pi$; *m* is an integer). This bound for |R(t)| appears due to the fact that in the quantum case the momentum cannot grow faster than linearly with time. Thus, due to the Heisenberg uncertainty relation, the mixing scale in coordinate space cannot decrease faster than linearly with time. In contrast, due to the exponential instability of classical dynamics the mixing scale decreases exponentially with time. Hence, for the classical dynamics such a correlator decays usually exponentially with time at high values of chaos parameter $K \gg 1$ with an expected decay $|R(t)| \sim \exp(-ht)$. Thus at the Ehrenfest time $\tau_E \sim |\ln \hbar|/h$ the quantum correlator becomes much larger than its

classical values. However, the averages of quantum energy, or square of momentum, remain close to their classical values on much longer time scale $t_H \propto 1/\hbar^2$ since the small values of quantum correlator are accumulated with time (like sum of correlators) leading to deviations between quantum and classical energy values only on time scale of the order of t_H .

Examples of the time dependence of quantum correlator $R(\tau) = \langle 0| \cos \hat{x}_t \cos \hat{x}_{t+\tau} + \cos \hat{x}_{t+\tau} \cos \hat{x}_t |0\rangle$ are shown in Fig.2,Fig.3 (here the initial state has zero momentum and averaging is done over all times *t* at fixed τ). The results clearly show a stationary level of correlator fluctuations starting from the Ehrenfest time of 1 to 3 map iterations. The direct computation of the ratio of quantum correlator to its classical value shows that this ratio becomes more than 100 percent different from its classical value at $\tau = 2(K = 5, \hbar = 1, \hbar = K/40)$; $\tau = 5(K = 5, \hbar = K/100)$; $\tau = 3(K = 5 + 2\pi, \hbar = K/100)$ (see Table 1 in (Shepelyansky, 1983)). These time values are in agreement with the above estimate for the Ehrenfest time.

The dependence of Heisenberg operators at a given time \hat{p}_t, \hat{x}_t on the initial operators \hat{p}_0, \hat{x}_0 at zero time, presented in the ordered form, was obtained by Shepelyanskii, 1981b. In this way it was shown that at times up to short Ehrenfest times $t < t_E$ the sensitivity of operators \hat{p}_t, \hat{x}_t to initial operators \hat{p}_0, \hat{x}_0 is growing with time exponentially as in the classical case while at large times $t \gg t_E$ the sensitivity cannot grow faster than linearly with time since the number of momentum harmonics grows not faster than linearly with time. Thus there is no exponential sensitivity of Heisenberg operators to their initial values and thus the quantum Kolmogorov-Sinai entropy is zero (Shepelyanskii, 1981a).



Chirikov standard map at K = 5, $\hbar = 1$ and initial state with zero momentum (Figure is taken from Shepelyansky, 1983(a)).



Figure 3: Same as Fig.2 at K = 5, h = 1/8 (Figure is taken from Shepelyansky, 1983(b)).

Recently there is a growing interest to so called out-of-time-ordered correlators (OTOC) (see e.g. Hamazaki et al., 2018,,Jalabert et al., 2018,) which illustrate on short times an exponential growth and saturation on large times (e.g. $\langle 0|\hat{p}_0 \cos \hat{x}_t|0\rangle$) in agreement with the results obtained by Shepelyanskii, 1981a.

The computation of quantum correlations for $\hbar > 1$ allows to determine the quantum diffusion coefficient D in this regime showing that in the classical dependence D(K) the replacement $K \to K_q = 2(K/\hbar) \sin(\hbar/2)$ should be done for the quantum case Shepelyansky, 1987. This leads to characteristic oscillations of the diffusion coefficient and localization length of quantum eigenstates $\ell = D(K_q)/2$ with $K_q = 2(K/\hbar) \sin(\hbar/2)$ (see also Fig.5 at

Chirikov standard map).

Time reversibility

Even if the equation of motion describing classical dynamics can be reversible in time (e.g. Chirikov standard map, chaotic Dynamical billiards) the exponential instability of chaos leads to a practical irreversibility of motion due to exponential growth of errors with time. However, the corresponding quantum evolution of such systems has no exponential instability (see above) and thus the quantum evolution shows the time reversibility even at a rather high level of quantum errors. The demonstration of this difference for classical and quantum dynamics of the Chirikov standard map was given by Shepelyansky, 1983 (see also Figs.6,7 at Chirikov standard map). The effect of time reversibility of quantum evolution beyond the Ehrenfest time, as discussed above, is at the origin of stability of time reversibility of quantum motion in a drastic difference from the classical chaotic dynamics with its exponentially growing errors during the whole time reversibility interval. The stability of quantum evolution becomes especially evident for a case of a quantum computer simulating classical chaotic dynamics of the Arnold cat map as discussed by Georgeot and Shepelyansky, 2001, Georgeot and Shepelyansky, 2002.

Semiclassical expansion beyond Ehrenfest time

For quantum evolution of systems with classical chaotic dynamics it was shown by Shepelyanskii, 1981a that even beyond the Ehrenfest time the semiclassical expression for the wavefunction still can be presented as a sum over classical trajectories (see Maslov, 1961, Maslov and Fedoriuk, 1981). The expansion has the form

$$\psi(x,t) = \sum_{k=1}^{N} |J_k|^{-1/2} \exp(iS_k(x,t)/\hbar - i\pi\mu_k/2) \times [\sum_{m=0}^{\infty} [\hat{L}_k^m \varphi_0(x_0)]|_{x_0 = x_0^k(x,k)}] + O(\hbar^{\infty})$$

where the *k*-summation runs over all classical trajectories which arrive at the point *x* at time *t* and satisfy the initial conditions $x_0(x, t) = x_0^k$, $p_0(x_0) = \partial S/\partial x_0|_{x_0=x_0^k}$, $J_k = \partial x(x_0, t)/\partial x_0|_{x_0=x_0^k}$ where $S_k(x, t)$ is the action along the classical trajectory which connects x_0^k and *x*, and μ_k is the Morse index. At initial time t = 0 we have $\psi(x, 0) = \varphi_0(x_0) \exp(iS_0(x_0))$. The sum over *m* is essentially an expansion in powers of \hbar . Since the classical dynamics is chaotic the Jacobian J_k and the number *N* in the sum increases exponentially with time, so that $J_k \propto \exp(ht)$, $N \propto \exp(ht)$. Indeed, there are exponentially many classical trajectories from initial distribution at zero time arriving to a giving coordinate at time *t* (see Fig.4). Fig.4 directly shows that there are exponentially many trajectories, from initial distribution, arriving at time *t* to a given point *x* with different momentum values. Nonetheless, the semiclassical expansion remains valid if $\hat{L}_k \varphi_0 \ll \varphi_0$ that is satisfied on long times $t \sim t_q \propto O(1/\hbar) \gg \tau_E$ which greatly exceed the Ehrenfest time on which a coherent wave packet spreads over almost a whole phase space. During these times $t_q \propto O(1/\hbar) \gg \tau_E$ the quantum diffusion coefficient is close to its classical values as shown by Shepelyanskii, 1981a.

A similar type of semiclassical wavefunction expressed by a sum over periodic orbits is used in the Gutzwiller trace formula for the semiclassical quantization of systems being chaotic in the classical limit (see Gutzwiller, 1990). This

gave the answer on the problem of semiclassical quantization of nonintegrable systems pointed by Einstein, 1917 in view of the existence of nonintegrable dynamics proved by Poincare, 1890.

Quantum evolution beyond Ehrenfest time

The distributions of quantum states at large times, obtained from an initial narrow wave packet, are illustrated for the quantum Chirikov standard map (4 vertical panels of Fig.5) and typical map (Fig.6).

The top 3 panels of 4 vertical panels of Fig.5 show the quantum Poincare sections represented by the Husimi function (the smoothed Wigner function) for the quantum Chirikov standard map at K = 1.1 and $\hbar = 2\pi/N$ with $N = 2^8$, 2^{12} , 2^{16} quantum states inside the phase space cell $(x, p) = 2\pi \times 2\pi$. Here the initial state is a minimal coherent state of one quantum cell taken in the chaotic component at $x = p = 0.1 \times 2\pi$; the section is shown



after $t = 2 \times 10^4$, map iterations (red is for maximum density, blue is for minimum). The fourth bottom panel shows the classical Poincare section for the same parameters, initially $N = 2^{16}$ classical orbits are homogeneously distributed inside the classical area corresponding to the effective Planck constant $\hbar = 2\pi/2^{16}$ (density is averaged over 1000 last iterations).

The similar quantum evolution for the Chirikov typical map is shown in Fig.6 on large times (corresponding to the short time evolution in Fig.1).

In both examples at moderate values of Planck constant the wave packet spreading over the whole space is suppressed by quantum interference effects leading to a quantum localization of slow diffusion through a weakly destroyed KAM curves. With the further decrease of Planck constant the spreading goes over the whole phase space domain occupied by the connected chaotic component. The comparison with the classical distribution shows that the quantum wavefunction becomes ergodic, over the phase space of classical chaotic component, in the limit of large times and small Planck constant. This corresponds to the Bohr correspondence principle which implies that at small values of Planck constant the quantum distribution follows the classical one at least on some time scale. Since the classical distribution for the standard map is ergodic on a chaotic component (see bottom panel of Fig.5) we can expect that the quasi-energy eigenstates of quantum standard map will be ergodic on the chaotic component (surrounding stability islands). This corresponds to the regime of Shnirelman ergodicity of quantum eigenstates of chaotic billiard as discussed at Shnirelman theorem. For chaotic billiards with energy conservation the quantum ergodicity of eigenstates takes place on the energy surface while for the quantum standard map the ergodicity of quasi-energy eigenstates takes place on the chaotic component of the map.

Ehrenfest explosion and collapse

The method of quantum trajectories is applied for the investigation of quantum dynamics of the Chirikov standard map with dissipation by Carlo et al., 2005. The classical map has the form $p_{t+1} = (1 - \gamma)p + K \sin x_t, x_{t+1} = x_t + p_{t+1}$ where $0 < \gamma < 1$ describes dissipation (at $\gamma = 0$ we have the standard map). At large chaos parameter and moderate dissipation the classical dynamics has a strange attractor. The quantum dissipative evolution is described by a master equation in the Lindblad form (see e.g. Weiss, 1999). The numerical simulations are performed with the method of quantum trajectories (Brun et al., 1996). They clearly show a transition from the wave packet collapse to explositon as shown in Fig.7. The detailed studies show that the dissipation leads to collapse or localization of the wave packet on a time scale $t_{\gamma} \sim 1/\gamma$. On the other side the classical chaos instability leads to the spreading of the wave packet on the Ehrenfest time $\tau \sim |\ln \hbar|/2h \approx |\ln \hbar|/2 \ln(K/2)$. Hence the wave packet collapse takes place at $1/\gamma < \tau_E$ and the Ehrenfest explosion takes place at weak dissipation with $1/\gamma > \tau_E$. For the regime of integrable dynamics the Ehrenfest time is rather large at small values of Planck constant and thus the explosion practically disappears leaving place to collapse.

Other aspects of Ehrenfest time

Other aspects and applications of Ehrenfest time concept to mesoscopic transport and Loschmidt echo are described at Scholarpedia articles Mesoscopic transport and quantum chaos by Jalabert, 2016 and Loschmidt echo by Gusev et al., 2012 . An interested reader can also find additional discussions of this topic by Silvestrov and Beenakker, 2032, Faure, 2007, Schubert et al., 2012 .

Historical notes

It should be noted that the first attempt to compare the quantum and classical averages for systems with chaotic dynamics was done by Berman and Zaslavsky, 1978. The expansion of average of a quantum operator in powers of Planck constant was used there for initial coherent state. The comparison was done

between a quantum average and a classical value given by the classical trajectory started from the center of coherent packet. It was shown that the quantum corrections of the order of Planck constant have coefficients growing exponentially with time (roughly with the rate given by Lyapunov exponent of classical dynamics). On this basis it was concluded that for classically chaotic system the quantum corrections grow exponentially fast. However, in fact the comparison of quantum averages should be done not with the classical variable value of one central trajectory



section of the standard map represented by the Husimi function at K = 1.1 (see text for details and Category:Quantum_Chaos). but with the average obtained from a classical Liouville distribution modeling the probability distribution of initial quantum state. Indeed, it is clear that, even only for classical evolution, there are exponentially growing differences between the values of one trajectory and those obtained from the Liouville distribution due to exponential divergence in time of classical trajectories of chaotic dynamics. Such a comparison was not done by Berman and Zaslavsky, 1978 and thus their results are not conclusive. Also no links with the Ehrenfest theorem were given by Berman and Zaslavsky, 1978.

The links with the Ehrenfest theorem and estimates of the Ehrenfest time for systems with chaotic dynamics were first done by Chirikov et al., 1981 and the term Ehrenfest time was coined by Chirikov et al., 1988. The strong difference between classical and quantum correlators was shown to appear on the Ehrenfest time by Shepelyanskii, 1981b with numerical confirmations given in Shepelyansky, 1983. The validity of the semiclassical wavefunction expansion beyond the Ehrenfest time was shown by Shepelyanskii, 1981a.

References

- G.P.Berman, G.M.Zaslavsky, Condition of stochasticity in quantum nonlinear systems, Physica A 91: 450 (1978)
- N.Bohr N, *Uber die Serienspektra der Element*, Zeitschrift fur Physik 2:, 423 (1920)
- T.A.Brun, I.C.Percival, R.Schack, Quantum chaos in open systems: a quantum state diffusion analysis, J. Phys A: Math. Gen. 29: 2077 (1996)



Figure 6: Quantum evolution of the Chirikov typical map as in Fig.1 with the same coherent Gaussian state as initial condition, same values k = 0.1, T = 10, $\hbar = 2\pi/N$ but at the iteration time t = 20000 and at different values of $N = 2^8$, 2^{10} (first row), $N = 2^{12}$, 2^{14} (second row), $N = 2^{16}$ and classical simulation (third row). For the classical map 20000 trajectories have been iterated up to the same time t = 20000 with random initials conditions very close to the initial position at $x_0 = 0.8 \cdot 2\pi \pm 0.002$ and $p_0 = 0.25 \cdot 2\pi \pm 0.002$ (colors are as in Fig.1).(Figure is taken from Frahm and Shepelyansky, 2009).

- G.G.Carlo, G.Benenti, D.L.Shepelyansky, *Dissipative quantum chaos: transition from wave packet collapse to explosion*, Phys. Rev. Lett. 95: 164101 (2005) [1] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my154.pdf)
- B.V.Chirikov, *Research concerning the theory of nonlinear resonance and stochasticity*, Preprint N 267, Institute of Nuclear Physics, Novosibirsk (1969) [2] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/chirikov /refs/chi1969.pdf), (Engl. Trans., CERN Trans. 71-40 (1971)) [3] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/chirikov /refs/chi1969e.pdf)

- B.V.Chirikov, A universal instability of manydimensional oscillator systems, Phys. Rep. 52: 263 (1979)
- B.V.Chirikov, F.M.Izrailev, D.L.Shepelyansky, Dynamical stochasticity in classical and quantum mechanics, Sov. Scient. Rev. C 2: 209 (1981) (Section C - Mathematical Physics Reviews, Ed. S.P.Novikov vol.2, Harwood Acad. Publ., Chur, Switzerland (1981)) [4] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs /my004.pdf)
- B.V.Chirikov, D.L.Shepelyanskii, *Localization of dynamical chaos in quantum systems*, Radiophysics and Quantum Electronics (Trans. from Russian) 29(9): 787 (1986) [5]
 (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs /my024b.pdf) ; Preprint Inst. Nuclear Phys. 85-29, Novosibirsk (1985) in Russian [6]
 (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs /my024binp.pdf)
- B.V.Chirikov, F.M.Izrailev, D.L.Shepelyansky, *Quantum chaos: localization vs. ergodicity*, Physica D 33: 77 (1988) [7] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs /my036.pdf)
- P.Ehrenfest, Bemerkung über die angenaherte Gultigkeit der klassischen Mechanik innerhalb der Quantenmechanik, Zeitschrift fur Physik 45: 455 (1927)



Figure 7: Transition from the wave packet collapse (top left) to explosion (top right). Top: Husimi functions in phase space for a single quantum trajectory taken after t = 300 kicks, at K = 7, $\hbar = 0.012$, and dissipation $\gamma = 0.5$ (left) and $\gamma = 0.01$ (right). Here x (horizontal coordinate axis) and p (vertical momentum axis) vary in the intervals $0 \le x < 2\pi$, $-25 \le p \le 25$ (left) and $-100 \le p \le 50$ (right); the width of the p-interval is the same in both cases for comparison purposes. The initial Gaussian wave packet is located at $(\langle x \rangle, \langle p \rangle) = (5\pi/4, 0)$. The color is proportional to density: blue for zero and red for maximum. Bottom: quantum Poincare section (left), obtained from average quantum x, p values for the case of top left panel and its classical counterpart (right); here $0 \le x < 2\pi$ and $-15 \le p \le 15$. (Figure is taken from Carlo et al., 2005).

- A.Einstein, *Zum quantensatz von Sommerfeld und Epstein*, Verh. Dt. Phys. Ges. **19**, 82 (1917), (English translation: *On the quantum theorem of Sommerfeld and Epstein*, The Collected Papers of Albert Einstein, Princeton U. Press, Princeton, NJ (1997) **6**, 434).
- F.Faure, *Semi-classical formula beyond the Ehrenfest time in quantum chaos. (I) Trace formula*, Ann. Inst. Fourier, Grenoble 57(7): 2525 (2007)
- S.Fishman, D.R. Grempel, R.E. Prange, *Chaos, quantum recurrences and Anderson localization*, Phys. Rev. Lett. 49: 509 (1982)
- K.M.Frahm, D.L.Shepelyansky, *Diffusion and localization for the Chirikov typical map*, Phys. Rev. E 80: 016210 (2009) [8] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my180.pdf)
- B.Georgeot, D.L.Shepelyansky, *Stable quantum computation of unstable classical chaos*, Phys. Rev. Lett. 86: 5393 (2001) [9] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my121.pdf)

- B.Georgeot, D.L.Shepelyansky, *Quantum computer inverting time arrow for macroscopic systems*, Eur. Phys. J. D 19: 263 (2002) [10] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my127.pdf)
- A.Gusev, R.A.Jalabert, H.M.Pastawski, D.A.Wisniacki, *Loschmidt echo*, Scholarpedia 7(8): 11687 (2012)
- M.C.Gutzwiller, *Chaos in classical and quantum mechanics*, Springer-Verlag, New York (1990)
- R.Hamazaki, K.Fujimoto, M.Ueda, *Operator noncommutativity and irreversibility in quantum chaos,* arXiv:1807.02360[cond-mat.stat-mech] (2018)
- R.A.Jalabert, *Mesoscopic transport and quantum chaos*, Scholarpedia 11(1): 30946 (2016)
- R.A.Jalabert, I.Garcia-Mata, D.A.Wisniacki, *Semiclassical theory of out-of-time-order correlators for lowdimensional classically chaotic systems* Phys. Rev. E 98: 062218 (2018)
- A.J.Lichtenberg, M.A.Lieberman, *Regular and chaotic dynamics*, Springer, Berlin (1992)
- V.P.Maslov, *The quasi-classical asymptote to the solutions of some problems in mathematical physics. II*, Zh. Vychisl. Mat. Mat. Fiz. 1(4): 638 (1961) (Engl. trans. USSR Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics 1(3): 744 (1962), doi.org/10.1016/0041-5553(63)90173-3)
- V.P.Maslov, M.V.Fedoriuk, *Semi-classical approximation in quantum mechanics*, Reidel, Dordrecht (1981); ISBN 1-4020-0306-4
- H.Poincare, *Sur le probleme des trois corps et les equations de la dynamique*, Acta Math. **13**, 1 (1890) (DOI:10.1007/BF02392506).
- F.L.Moore, J.C.Robinson, C.F.Bharucha, B.Sundaram, M.G.Raizen, *Atom optics realization of the quantum* δ *-kicked rotor*, Phys. Rev. Lett. 75: 4598 (1995)
- R.Schubert, R.O.Vallejos, F.Toscano, *How do wave packets spread? Time evolution on Ehrenfest time scales*, J. Phys. A: Math. Theor. 45: 215307 (2012)
- D.L.Shepelyanskii, *Quasiclassical approximation for stochastic quantum systems*, Sov. Phys. Dokl. 26(1): 80 (1981a) [11] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my002en.pdf) ; also Preprint Inst. Nuclear Physics 80-132, Novosibirsk (1980) [12] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my002b.pdf)
- D.L.Shepelyanskii, *Dynamical stochasticity in nonlinear quantum systems*, Theor. Math. Phys. 49(1): 925 (1981b) [13] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my003c.pdf) ; also Preprint Inst. Nuclear Physics 80-157, Novosibirsk (1980) [14] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my003b.pdf)
- D.L.Shepelyansky, Some statistical properties of simple classically stochastic quantum systems, (a) Physica D 8: 208 (1983) [15] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my014.pdf); also (b) Preprint Inst. Nuclear Physics 81-55, Novosibirsk (1981) [16] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my014binp.pdf)
- D.L.Shepelyansky, *Localization of quasienergy eigenfunction in action space*, Phys. Rev. Lett. 56: 677 (1986) [17] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my020.pdf)
- D.L.Shepelyansky, *Localization of diffusive excitation in multi-level systems*, Physica D 28: 103 (1987) [18] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my027.pdf); Preprint Inst. Nuclear Physics 85-122, Novosibirsk (1985) in Russian [19] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs/my027binp.pdf); Preprint Inst. Nuclear Physics 86-187, Novosibirsk (1986) in English [20] (http://www.quantware.ups-tlse.fr/dima/myrefs /my027binpen.pdf)
- P. G. Silvestrov, C. W. J. Beenakker, *Ehrenfest times for classically chaotic systems*, Phys. Rev. E 65: 035208(R) (2002)

• U.Weiss, Quantum dissipative systems, World Scientific, Singapore (1999)

External links at Wikipedia

Paul Ehrenfest (https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Paul_Ehrenfest) , Ehrenfest theorem (https://en.wikipedia.org /wiki/Ehrenfest_theorem)

See also at Scholarpedia

Anderson localization and quantum chaos maps, Chirikov standard map, Cold atom experiments in quantum chaos, Kolmogorov-Sinai entropy, Loschmidt echo, Mesoscopic transport and quantum chaos, Shnirelman theorem

Sponsored by: Eugene M. Izhikevich, Editor-in-Chief of Scholarpedia, the peer-reviewed open-access encyclopedia Reviewed by (http://www.scholarpedia.org/w/index.php?title=Ehrenfest_time_and_chaos&oldid=194567) : Prof. Rodolfo A. Jalabert, Institut de Physique et Chimie des Matériaux de Strasbourg, CNRS, Université de Strasbourg, France

Reviewed by (http://www.scholarpedia.org/w/index.php?title=Ehrenfest_time_and_chaos&oldid=194567) : Anonymous (via Dr. Atri Bhattacharya, University of Liege, Liege, Belgium) Accepted on: 2020-08-26 09:07:17 GMT (http://www.scholarpedia.org /w/index.php?title=Ehrenfest_time_and_chaos&oldid=194583)

Category:	Quantum Chaos	
		This page was last modified on 26 August 2020, at 09:07.
		This page has been accessed
		18,517 times.
		"Ehrenfest time and chaos" by
		Dima Shepelyansky is licensed
		under a Creative Commons
		Attribution-NonCommercial-
		ShareAlike 3.0 Unported
		License. Permissions beyond
		the scope of this license are
		described in the Terms of Use